CITY OF RICHARDSON
CITY PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES - SEPTEMBER 5, 2023

The Richardson City Plan Commission met on September 5, 2023, at 7:00 p.m. in the Multipurpose
Room, #CH157 of the Richardson City Hall, 2360 Campbell Creek Boulevard, Richardson, TX
75082.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Bryan Marsh, Chairman
Kenneth Southard, Vice Chairman
Joe Costantino, Commissioner
Sebrena Bohnsack, Commissioner
Byron Purdy, Commissioner
Nate Roberts, Commissioner
Michael Keller, Commissioner

MEMBERS ABSENT: Gwen Walraven, Commissioner
Gary Beach, Commissioner

CITY STAFF PRESENT: Chris Shacklett, Asst. Director of Development Svcs. — Planning
Derica Peters, Senior Planner
Anna Jo Castaneda, Executive Secretary
Alayna Pangus, Administrative Secretary

BRIEFING SESSION

Prior to the start of the regular business meeting, the City Plan Commission met with staff
regarding staff reports and agenda items.'No action was taken.

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING

1. Approval of Minutes of the regular business meeting of August 1, 2023.

Motion: Chairman Marsh made a motion to approve the minutes as presented; Seconded
by Commissioner Costantino. Motion passed 7-0.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

2. Zoning File 23-08 — Special Permit — 77 Wedding & Event Center: Consider and act on a
request. for approval of a Special Permit for an approximately 5,900-square foot event center
located within an approximately 9,300-square foot building on a 1.96-acre lot currently zoned
Collins/Arapaho TOD & Innovation District PD Planned Development (Employment Sub-
District), located at 1801 N. Plano Road, at the southwest corner of Plano Road and Digital
Drive. Property Owner: Huyen Ton, representing DI 7 Restaurant LLC. Staff: Derica Peters.

Ms. Peters began by stating Zoning File 23-08 is a request for a Special Permit for an event
center at 1801 N. Plano Road. The subject property is zoned Employment Sub-District of the
Collins/Arapaho TOD & Innovation District Form Based Code. The surrounding properties
have been developed as office, retail, restaurant, and other commercial uses. The Concept Plan
reflects the 1.96-acre property that was developed in the early 1980’s with a single-story,



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
September 5, 2023 2

9,318-square foot building. It has been occupied since that time by restaurants and a bar until
it was vacated in 2022.

The applicant purchased the property with the intent to continue the restaurant use and to open
their own restaurant concept and to construct a dividing wall to partition the northern portion
of the building for an event center. The applicant states the event center will host weddings,
corporate events, birthdays, and other various social gatherings.

Ms. Peters stated that a Special Permit is required for an event center. The City had approved
three (3) Special Permits in the past ten (10) years with the most recent being the Aqua Hall
Event Center that was approved in 2022 and opened at 2090 E. Arapaho Road.

Ms. Peters stated the applicant originally proposed that the event center would operate from
10:00 a.m. to 2:00 a.m. seven (7) days a week; however, the-applicant would discuss revised
hours of operation during their presentation. The applicant intended to operate the restaurant
from 8:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. daily.

Ms. Peters stated the Concept Plan reflected no major madifications to the exterior of the site;
however, there would be some facade improvements.

Ms. Peters stated the site provided 121 parking spaces. The restaurant is required to provide
thirty-six (36) spaces; eighty-five (85) spaces remain for the event center. The City does not
have a code-established parking ratio for event centers; so the applicant proposed a ratio similar
to that established for movie theaters and churches, which require one (1) parking space per
three (3) seats. The applicant proposed to utilize a ratio of one (1) parking space per 2.5 seats,
which would allow up to 212 guests-at the event center.

Ms. Peters then presented an elevation exhibit that reflected the exterior modifications to the
east facade. The applicant intended to add a new aluminum storefront entryway for the event
center and brick along a portion of the east facade. She presented the floor plan which reflected
the restaurant in the southern portion of the building and the event center in the northern
portion. The kitchen facilities would remain in the restaurant portion of the building while the
event center would provide seating, a stage area, offices, restrooms, and prep areas for events.
No Kitchen facilities would be provided in the event center as food would be catered in from
outside caterers or restaurants. Ms. Peters then presented various photos of the subject site.

Ms. Peters provided a summary of the request and the conditions to be included if the
Commission recommended approval. She requested the Commission consider modifications
to the conditions presented related to the Special Permit expiration and the proposed parking
ratio.

Ms. Peters concluded her presentation stating that no correspondence had been received in
favor or opposition to the request, then made herself available for questions.

With no further questions from the Commission, Chairman Marsh invited the applicant
forward to present the request.



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
September 5, 2023 3

Mr. Brandon Sherman, spoke on behalf of his wife Huyen Ton, representing DI 7 Restaurant
LLC, 4208 Danmire Drive, Richardson, TX 75082 regarding the Special Permit request. He
clarified that although the applicant statement requested the ability to operate until 2:00 a.m.
every day, the hours of operation would be until 2:00 a.m. only on the weekends. The intent
would be to operate no later than 12:00 a.m. on Sunday through Thursday.

Chairman Marsh stated that he wanted to clarify which days the applicant intended to operate
until 2:00 a.m.

Mr. Sherman stated they would operate until 2:00 a.m. on Fridays and Saturdays (until 2:00
a.m. on Saturday and Sunday mornings).

Mr. Shacklett stated if the Commission made a recommendation to modify the hours, staff
would clarify the condition to ensure it was clear which days the event center-could operate
until 2:00 a.m.

Mr. Sherman stated the former restaurant and bar did'not look good right now, but their intent
was to get away from the bar scene. He stated the event center would not hold a liquor license.
He stated they wanted to provide a nice, modern professional restaurant as well as an event
center. Mr. Sherman stated that when they purchased the property, they visited the surrounding
businesses to inquire about thoughts on the prior businesses. He stated it seemed that everyone
complained about the trash and the bar scene. He discussed their plans for exterior
improvements. He stated the patio needed repair, and there would be no live music on the patio.

Chairman Marsh confirmed that Mr. Sherman’s name was not on the application or in the
conditions of the Special Permit and if that was acceptable to him.

Mr. Sherman stated he understood and that was acceptable.
Chairman Marsh asked if there were any questions from the Commission.

Vice Chairman Southard asked if the applicant had any prior experience owning or operating
a restaurant or event center.

Mr. Sherman stated he and his wife had operated a restaurant previously. He stated they also
operate a real estate and insurance office. He stated they wanted to open an event center since
they were always looking for event space for their other businesses.

Vice Chairman Southard asked if he felt the area was underserved for event centers and what
type of food the restaurant would be serving.

Mr. Sherman stated the area was underserved and that the restaurant would be serving
Vietnamese street food.

Commissioner Purdy asked if there were any other changes, they planned on making in
addition to getting away from the bar scene.



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
September 5, 2023 4

Mr. Sherman stated that was their main goal, and they wanted to be good neighbors related to
not parking on other properties. He stated that even if a caterer was providing alcohol, he and
his wife would oversee to make sure the event center operated appropriately.

Vice Chairman Southard asked if the applicant was aware of the significance of the change
related to the Special Permit expiration that staff had discussed.

Mr. Sherman stated he would contact the Development Services Department for clarification.

Mr. Shacklett stated the change was related to the expiration of the Special Permit, which'is
typically six (6) months from the date of ordinance approval. He stated since construction was
required to open the event center, the deadline should be six (6) months to acquire a building
permit and not a Certificate of Occupancy (C.O.) as the presented conditions stated.

Chairman Marsh inquired if the applicant was comfortable with the capacity of 212 seats.

Mr. Sherman stated they wanted more seats but werenot sure if they would be able to manage
more people comfortably. He stated they agreed to 212 seats, which was the maximum amount
allowed based on their proposed parking ratio.

Chairman Marsh inquired about the issues raised about the outdoor patio and potential for live
music or entertainment.

Mr. Sherman stated they had no_plans for outdoor music. He stated they do not currently have
plans for how to use the patio.

With no further questions for the applicant, Chairman Marsh opened the public hearing and
asked if there was anyone wishing to speak in favor or opposition of the request.

Mr. Huy Pham; 1717 Vine Brook, Wylie, TX 75098 came forward to speak in favor of the
request.

With no other speakers in favor or opposition, Chairman Marsh made a motion to close the
public hearing. Seconded by Vice Chairman Southard. Motion passed 7-0.

Vice Chairman Southard asked staff if the applicant saw the need for more than 212 guests,
would staff require some kind of parking agreement with neighboring businesses?

Ms. Peters stated that staff would need to see that they obtained a parking agreement with the
neighbor and would likely require the agreement to be recorded with the County. However,
they would need to amend the Special Permit to modify the limit restricting the event center to
no more than 212 guests even with a shared parking agreement.

Chairman Marsh stated there was a need for better uses to serve the community. The City could
use more places like this event center, but it all came down to parking. The City does not have
a set standard, but it needs to be more restrictive than a theatre or church use where you see
more couples and families riding together compared to certain events like business meetings
or lectures where attendees may drive separately.



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
September 5, 2023 5

Chairman Marsh stated it appeared the number of seats was based on the number of parking
spaces remaining after the restaurant’s thirty-six (36) parking spaces were accounted for.

Mr. Shacklett stated the size of the restaurant and event center had changed slightly since the
initial submittal. Based on the current floor plan, the restaurant was going to require thirty-six
(36) parking spaces. He confirmed that the applicant was proposing the same number of seats
in the restaurant and event center space as the previous bar/restaurant use had.in the building
even though the maximum allowable occupancy for the previous use was higher.

Mr. Sherman stated since they owned the restaurant and event center; they can better control
parking by closing the restaurant at times where they expect a larger number of attendees in
the event center.

Mr. Shacklett stated the applicant could control the restaurant hours of operation when there
were larger events; however, the City could not regulate the restaurant hours of operation since
the Special Permit was not related to the restaurant use.

Motion: Commissioner Costantino made-a motion to approve the Zoning File 23-08 —
Special Permit — 77 Wedding and Event Center request as submitted with
the following modifications, to include a change to Condition #3 related to the
timeframe for receipt of a building permit; Condition #4 related to restricting
the closing time on Sunday through Thursday from 2:00 a.m. to 12:00 a.m.; and
Condition #6 to.require one (1) parking space per 2.5 seats. Seconded by
Commissioner-Roberts. Motion passed 7-0.

ADJOURN
With no further business before the Commission, Chairman Marsh adjourned the regular
business meeting at 7:39 p.m.

Bryan Marsh, Chairman





